# THE UNIVERSITY OF NEWCASTLE

# CONTROLLED ENTITIES



## **FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

# **CONTENTS**

# THE UNIVERSITY OF NEWCASTLE RESEARCH ASSOCIATES (TUNRA) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIRECTORS' REPORT	02
INCOME STATEMENT	05
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME	06
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION	07
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY	80
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS	09
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	10
DIRECTORS' DECLARATION	35
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S DECLARATION	36
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT	37
<b>UON SINGAPORE FINANCIAL STATEME</b>	NTS
INCOME STATEMENT	40
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME	41
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION	42
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY	43
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS	44
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	45
DIRECTORS' DECLARATION	68
INDEDENDENT AUDITODIC DEDODT	60

# THE UNIVERSITY OF NEWCASTLE

# RESEARCH ASSOCIATES (TUNRA)

ABN 97 000 710 074

### **FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

### **DIRECTORS REPORT**

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

The directors present their report on The University of Newcastle Research Associates Limited (the Company) for the financial year ended 31 December 2016.

The Company is a public company, limited by guarantee and incorporated in NSW, Australia. The Company name change to The University of Newcastle Research Associates Limited was completed as of 4 October 2016. The Company was previously known as Newcastle Innovation Limited.

### Information on directors

The names of the Directors in office at any time during and since the end of financial year:

Professor Kevin Hall (Chair)

Dr Alan Broadfoot

Paul Dunn

John James O'Brien (resigned 4 March 2016)

Glenn Thurston Turner (resigned 21 March 2016)

Directors have been in office since the start of the financial year unless otherwise stated.

### **Principal activities**

The principal activities of the Company during the financial year were the undertaking of research and consulting projects whilst continuing to focus on supporting research opportunities for both students and externally as a not-for-profit entity.

No significant changes in the nature of the Company's activity occurred during the financial year.

### Operating results

The profit/(loss) of the Company amounted to \$596,385 (2015: \$(3,726,167)).

### **Review of operations**

The Company's objectives are advancing research and research education through engaging with government and industry to provide research services that contribute further to the University of Newcastle's research and innovation aspirations. TUNRA provides a robust and responsive customer service environment supported by a flexible operating model that is capable of supporting additional opportunities for the University to leverage assets and resources and consider new services and new markets to deliver greater benefit to industry. The Company provides the University of Newcastle with a vehicle through which it can run and manage more complicated and higher risk projects including international projects. The Company will continue to leverage the University of Newcastle's capability in the provision of research services to consider new services and new markets to deliver greater value for industry. As a commercial entity, the Company has been making a direct and indirect financial contribution to the University.

### Dividends paid or recommended

As a Company limited by guarantee, dividend payments are not permitted.

### Objectives and strategies

The objective of the Company is to create value from knowledge transfer from the University of Newcastle to industry and government partners. The main strategies involve building internal resources to access intellectual property and research capabilities at the University and connecting these opportunities to target markets both in Australia and internationally.

### **DIRECTORS REPORT**

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

### Performance measures and key performance indicators

Performance is monitored based on key success measures which include researcher/academic engagement metrics balanced with key metrics. Key objectives include areas of financial performance, customer orientation, business effectiveness, employee development and health, safety and environment.

### Future developments and results

Likely developments in the operations of the Company and the expected results of those operations in future financial years have not been included in this report because inclusion of such information is likely to result in unreasonable prejudice to the Company.

### Significant changes in state of affairs

There have been no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Company during the year.

### Events after the reporting date

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations of the Company, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the Company in future financial years.

### Information on directors

The particulars of the qualifications, experience and special responsibilities of each Director are as follows:

### Professor Kevin Hall (Chair)

Deputy Vice-Chancellor Research and Innovation (March 2014-current), University of Newcastle. B.Sc., Queen's University, Civil Engineering. M. Sc., Queens University, Civil Engineering, Ph.D., University of NSW, Civil Engineering. Vice President Research and External Partnerships, University of Guelph (2009 – current). Chair, Department of Civil Engineering, Queens University (2005-2008). Professor, Queen's University, Department of Civil Engineering (1996-2008). Associate Professor and NSERC University Research Fellow Queen's University, Department of Civil Engineering (1991-1996). Assistant Professor and NSERC University Research Fellow Queen's University, Department of Civil Engineering (1987-1991). Lecturer – NSW Institute of Technology (1985-1986). Newcastle Innovation Limited Director since March 2014.

### Dr Alan Broadfoot

Dr Alan Broadfoot, B.E. (Hons), M.E. Ph.D, FIEAust, MIEEE, graduate member of the Australian Institute of Company Directors, is the Director of the Newcastle Institute for Energy and Resources (NIER) at the University of Newcastle. Past Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of Ampcontrol, a leading international supplier of electrical and electronic products to the power, energy and mining sectors.

### Paul Dunn

Paul Dunn, B.Com. (Newcastle), FCPA, is the Chief Financial Officer of the University of Newcastle and joined the University after a 30-year career at BHP Billiton. Past Finance Lead on the 1SAP project in Singapore, Vice-President Finance at BHP Billiton Uranium Business, Vice-President Finance at BHP Billiton Olympic Dam in South Australia and Manager Finance at the Cannington mine in North Queensland.

newcastle.edu.au | 3

# 4

# THE UNIVERSITY OF NEWCASTLE RESEARCH ASSOCIATES (TUNRA)

### **DIRECTORS REPORT**

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

### Meetings of directors

The number of Directors' meetings held during the year and the number of meetings attended by each Director while holding office in the Company during the year were:

	Board Meetings	
	Attended	Held
K Hall	6	6
A Broadfoot	6	6
P Dunn	6	6
JJ O'Brien (resigned 4 March 2016)	0	6
GT Turner (resigned 21 March 2016)	1	6

### Indemnification and insurance of officers and auditors

During the year, the Company paid a premium for the Directors' and Officers' Liability insurance policy. This insurance policy provides cover for the Directors named in this report, the Company Secretary, Officers and former Directors and Officers of the Company. The contract prohibits the disclosure of the nature of the liability and the amount of the premium.

### Auditor's independence declaration

The auditor's independence declaration in accordance with section 60 - 40 of the *Australian Charities and Non-for-Profit Commission (ACNC) Act 2012*, for the year ended 31 December 2016 has been received and can be found on page 35 of the financial report.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors:

Professor Kevin Hall

Chair

Paul Dunn

PelDem

Director

Dated 23 March 2017

# **INCOME STATEMENT**

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

		2016	2015
	Note	\$	\$
Income from continuing operations			
Consultancy and contracts	2	10,179,593	14,652,021
Investment revenue	3	84,330	348,890
Other revenue		372,360	247,786
Total income from continuing operations		10,636,283	15,248,697
Expenses from continuing operations			
Employee related expenses	4	4,301,324	6,543,832
Depreciation and amortisation	5	134,271	263,824
Repairs and maintenance		137,944	81,398
Impairment of assets	6	(185,647)	630,450
Loss on disposal of assets		-	908
Donations	24	-	3,629,611
Other expenses	7	5,652,006	7,824,841
Total expenses from continuing operations		10,039,898	18,974,864
Net result for the period		596,385	(3,726,167)
Net result attributable to members of the University of Newcastle Research Associates Limited		596,385	(3,726,167)

The above Income Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.



# STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

	Note	2016 \$	2015 \$
Net result for the period	Note	596,385	(3,726,167)
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss			
Gain (loss) on value of available for sale financial assets, net of tax	16	227,505	182,780
Total other comprehensive income	_	227,505	182,780
Total comprehensive income	_	823,890	(3,543,387)
Total comprehensive income attributable to members of the University of Newcastle Research Associates Limited	_	823,890	(3,543,387)

# STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

		2016	2015
	Note	\$	\$
ASSETS			
Current assets			
Cash and cash equivalents	8	3,986,244	3,512,468
Receivables	9	1,865,131	2,925,798
Other financial assets	10	<u> </u>	2,500,000
Total current assets	_	5,851,375	8,938,266
Non-current assets			
Other financial assets	10	1,683,485	974,440
Plant and equipment	11	273,553	385,617
Intangible assets	12	101,990	87,092
Total non-current assets	_	2,059,028	1,447,149
Total assets	_	7,910,403	10,385,415
LIABILITIES			
Current liabilities			
Trade and other payables	13	3,089,649	4,516,679
Provisions	14	922,101	868,099
Other liabilities	15	1,699,398	3,200,825
Total current liabilities	_	5,711,148	8,585,603
Non-current liabilities			
Trade and other payables	13	-	500,000
Provisions	14 _	273,997	198,444
Total non-current liabilities	_	273,997	698,444
Total liabilities	_	5,985,145	9,284,047
Net assets	=	1,925,258	1,101,368
EQUITY			
Reserves	16	549,710	322,205
Retained earnings	16	1,375,548	779,163
Total equity	=	1,925,258	1,101,368

# STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

	Reserves	Retained earnings	Total
	\$	\$	\$
Balance at 1 January 2015	139,425	4,505,330	4,644,755
Net result	-	(3,726,167)	(3,726,167)
Gain on revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets	182,780	<u> </u>	182,780
Total comprehensive income	182,780	(3,726,167)	(3,543,387)
Balance at 31 December 2015	322,205	779,163	1,101,368
Balance at 1 January 2016	322,205	779,163	1,101,368
Net result	-	596,385	596,385
Gain on revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets	227,505		227,505
Total comprehensive income	227,505	596,385	823,890
Balance at 31 December 2016	549,710	1,375,548	1,925,258

# STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

		2016	2015
	Note	\$	\$
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES			
Receipts from customers		10,932,829	16,543,951
Payments to suppliers and employees (inclusive of GST)		(12,615,251)	(18,257,504)
Donation paid		-	(3,347,124)
Interest received		125,351	524,667
GST paid		(432,048)	(695,530)
Net cash provided by / (used in) operating activities	21	(1,989,119)	(5,231,540)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES			
Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment		-	50,909
Proceeds from redemption of held to maturity investments		10,600,000	21,600,000
Payments for purchase of plant and equipment		(6,400)	(248,094)
Payments for purchase of held to maturity investments		(8,100,000)	(13,900,000)
Payments for purchase of intellectual property		(30,705)	(356,945)
Net cash provided by / (used in) investing activities		2,462,895	7,145,870
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents		473,776	1,914,330
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the financial year		3,512,468	1,598,138
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the financial year	8	3,986,244	3,512,468

### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

### 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The University of Newcastle Research Associates Limited (the Company) is a registered company limited by guarantee and is a controlled entity of the University of Newcastle. The Company name change to The University of Newcastle Research Associates Limited was completed as of 4 October 2016. The Company was previously known as Newcastle Innovation Limited. The Company is a not for profit entity (as profit is not its principal objective) and it has one identified cash generating unit. The Company was established and has its domicile in Australia.

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied for all years reported unless otherwise stated.

The registered office and principal address of the Company is:

Newcastle Institute for Energy & Resources - NIER Block A 70 Vale Street
Shortland NSW 2307
Australia

### (a) Basis of preparation

The annual financial statements represent the audited general purpose financial statements of the Company. They have been prepared on an accrual basis and comply with the Australian Accounting Standards.

Additionally, the statements have been prepared in accordance with following statutory requirements:

- Public Finance and Audit Act 1983 (NSW)
- Public Finance and Audit Regulation 2015
- Australian Charities and Not-for-Profit Commission (ACNC) Act 2012

The Company is a not-for-profit entity and these statements have been prepared on that basis. Some of the Australian Accounting Standards requirements for not-for-profit entities are inconsistent with the IFRS requirements.

Date of authorisation for issue

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board members of the Company on 23 March 2017.

Historical cost convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets.

Critical accounting estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Australian Accounting Standards requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are disclosed below:

### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

### (a) Basis of preparation (continued)

- Provision for impairment of receivables: a provision is estimated when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original forms of the receivables as outlined in note 1(f).
- Impairment of investments and other financial assets: the Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is effective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired as outlined in note 1(g).
- Employee benefits long service leave: the liability for long service leave is measured at the present value of the expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date as outlined in note 1(n).
- Useful lives of plant and equipment: depreciation of plant and equipment is calculated over the assets estimated useful life as outlined in note 1(i).
- Useful lives of intangible assets: amortisation of intangible assets is calculated over the assets estimated
  useful life as outlined in note 1(k).
- Financial assets: management makes judgements in determining whether assets are classified as availablefor-sale, held to maturity or other.

### (b) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of returns, trade allowances rebates and amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company and specific criteria have been met for each of the Company's activities as described below. In some cases this may not be probable until consideration is received or an uncertainty is removed. The Company bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

Revenue is recognised for the major business activities as follows:

(i) Royalties, trademarks and licences

Revenue from royalties, trademarks and licences is recognised as income when earned.

(ii) Consultancy and research contracts

For contracts assessed as containing a reciprocal arrangement, revenue is recognised using the percentage of completion method, in accordance with AASB 118 *Revenue*. The stage of completion is measured by considering actual costs as a percentage of total forecast costs, or other suitable estimation technique.

Non-reciprocal consultancy and contract arrangements are accounted for in accordance with AASB 1004 *Contributions* and revenue is recognised at fair value when the Company obtains control of the right to receive the funds, it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Company, and it can be reliably measured.

### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

**SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)** 

### (b) Revenue recognition (continued)

(iii) Interest

Interest income is recognised as it accrues.

(iv) Other revenue

Other income represents miscellaneous income which is not derived from core operations and is recognised as income when earned.

### Income tax (c)

The Company does not provide for income tax as it is exempt under the provisions of Division 50 of the Income Tax Assessment Act 1997 (ITAA).

### (d) Impairment of assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

### Cash and cash equivalents (e)

For statement of cash flows presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the statement of financial position.

### (f) Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. Trade receivables are due for settlement no more than 30 days from the date of recognition.

Collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts that are known to be uncollectible are written off. A provision for impairment of receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue) are considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. Cash flows relating to short-term receivables are not discounted if the effect of discounting is immaterial. The amount of the provision is recognised in the income statement.

### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

### (g) Investments and other financial assets

### Classification

The Company classifies its investments in the following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, and available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired. Management determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition and, in the case of assets classified as held-to-maturity, reevaluates this designation at each reporting date.

### (i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this category if it is acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives are classified as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current assets.

### (ii) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for those with maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period which are classified as non-current assets. Loans and receivables are included in receivables in the statement of financial position.

### (iii) Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the Company's management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.

### (iv) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets, comprising principally of marketable equity securities, are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or are not classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless management intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months of the end of the reporting period.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date - the date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments and other financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transactions costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the income statement. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in other comprehensive income are included in the income statement as gains and losses from investment securities.

### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

- **SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)** 
  - Investments and other financial assets (continued) (g)

### Subsequent measurement

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the 'financial assets at fair value through profit or loss' category are included in the income statement within other income or other expenses in the period in which they arise.

Changes in the fair value of monetary security denominated in a foreign currency and classified as availablefor-sale are analysed between translation differences resulting from changes in amortised cost of the security and other changes in the carrying amount of the security (other than interest). The translation differences related to changes in the amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in carrying amount (other than interest) are recognised in equity. Changes in the fair value of other monetary and non-monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in equity.

### Fair value

The fair values of investments and other financial assets are based on quoted prices in an active market. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and for unlisted securities), the Company establishes fair value by using valuation techniques, that maximise the use of relevant data. These include reference to the estimated price in an orderly transaction that would take place between market participants at the measurement date. Other valuation techniques used are the cost approach and the income approach based on the characteristics of the asset and the assumptions made by market participants.

### **Impairment**

The Company assesses at each balance date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of a security below its cost is considered in determining whether the security is impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss - is removed from equity and recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses recognised in the income statement on equity instruments are not reversed through the income statement.

### (h) Fair value measurement

The fair value of assets and liabilities must be measured for recognition and disclosure purposes.

The Company classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.

The fair value of assets or liabilities traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and trading and available-for-sale securities) is based on quoted market prices for identical assets or liabilities at the end of the reporting period (level 1). The quoted market price used for assets held by the Company is the most representative of fair value in the circumstances within the bid-ask spread.

### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

### (h) Fair value measurement (continued)

The fair value of assets or liabilities that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques. The Company uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each balance date. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments (level 2) are used for long-term debt instruments held. Other techniques that are not based on observable market data (level 3), such as estimated discounted cash flows, are used to determine fair value for the remaining assets and liabilities. The fair value of interest-rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The fair value of forward exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange market rates at the end of the reporting period. The level in the fair value hierarchy is determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

Fair value measurement of non-financial assets is based on the highest and best use of the asset. The Company considers market participants use of, or purchase of the asset, to use it in a manner that would be highest and best use.

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values due to their short-term nature. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the Company for similar financial instruments.

### (i) Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on plant and equipment is calculated using the straight line method to allocate its cost, net of its residual values, over its estimated useful lives, as follows:

2016 2015
Plant and Equipment 3 - 7 years 3 - 7 years

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

### (j) Repairs and maintenance

Repairs and maintenance costs are recognised as expenses as incurred, except where they relate to the replacement of a component of an asset, in which case, the costs are capitalised and depreciated. Other routine operating maintenance, repair and minor renewal costs are also recognised as expenses, as incurred.

### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

### (k) Intangible assets

### (i) Intellectual property

Expenditure on intellectual property, being the application of research findings or other knowledge to a plan or design for the production of new or substantially improved products or services before the start of commercial production or use, is capitalised if the product or service is technically and commercially feasible and adequate resources are available to complete development. The expenditure capitalised comprises all directly attributable costs, including costs of materials, services, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Other intellectual property expenditure is recognised in the income statement as an expense when it is incurred. Trademarks, patent and licences have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation is calculated using the straight line method to allocate the cost of intellectual property over their estimated useful lives, which vary from 2 to 10 years.

### (ii) Computer software

Expenditure on software, being software that is not an integral part of the related hardware, is capitalised. Capitalised expenditure is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the straight line method to allocate the cost over the period of the expected benefit, to a maximum of 5 years.

### (I) Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of the financial year, which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days following the end of the month they are recognised.

### (m) Provisions

Provisions for legal claims and service warranties are recognised when: the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

### (n) Employee benefits

### (i) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for short-term employee benefits including wages and salaries and non-monetary benefits are measured at the amount expected to be paid when the liability is settled, if it is expected to be settled wholly before 12 months after the end of the reporting period, and is recognised in other payables. Liabilities for non-accumulating sick leave are recognised when the leave is taken and measured at the rates payable.

### (ii) Other long-term obligations

The liability for other long-term benefits are those that are not expected to be settled wholly before 12 months after the end of the annual reporting period. Other long-term employee benefits include such things as annual leave, accumulating sick leave and long service leave liabilities.

It is measured at the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on national government bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

Regardless of the expected timing of settlements, provisions made in respect of employee benefits are classified as a current liability, unless there is an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date, in which case it would be classified as a non-current liability.

### (iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the normal retirement date, or when an employee accepts an offer of benefits in exchange for the termination of employment. The Company recognises the expense and liability for termination benefits either when it can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or when it has recognised costs for restructuring within the scope of AASB 137 *Provisions*, *Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets* that involves the payment of termination benefits. The expense and liability are recognised when the Company is demonstrably committed to either terminating the employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal or providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy.

Termination benefits are measured on initial recognition and subsequent changes are measured and recognised in accordance with the nature of the employee benefit. Benefits expected to be settled wholly within 12 months are measured at the undiscounted amount expected to be paid. Benefits not expected to be settled before 12 months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to present value.

### (o) Rounding of amounts

Amounts in the financial statements have been rounded off in accordance with ASIC Corporations (Rounding in Financial/Directors' Reports) Instrument 2016/191 issued by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission (ASIC), relating to the "rounding off" of amounts in the financial statements. Amounts have been rounded off to the nearest dollar.

### (p) Goods and services tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority. In this case, it is recognised as part of the cost acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.

### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

**SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)** 

### Goods and services tax (GST) (continued) (p)

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included with other receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to the taxation authority, are presented as operating cash flows.

Commitments are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from or payable to tax authorities.

### (q) Comparative amounts

Where necessary, comparative information has been reclassified to enhance comparability in respect of changes in presentation adopted in the current year.

### (r) New accounting standards and interpretations not yet mandatory or early adopted

Certain new accounting standards and Interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 31 December 2016 reporting periods. The Company's assessment of the impact of these new standards and interpretations is set out below:

AASB 9 (2014) Financial instruments (effective 1 January 2018)

AASB 9 amends the requirements for classification and measurement of financial assets. The available-for-sale and held-to-maturity categories of financial assets in AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement have been eliminated. Under AASB 9, there are three categories of financial assets:

- 1. Amortised cost
- 2. Fair value through profit or loss
- 3. Fair value through other comprehensive income.

The following requirements have generally been carried forward unchanged from AASB 139 into AASB 9:

- Classification and measurement of financial liabilities; and
- Derecognition requirements for financial assets and liabilities.

However, AASB 9 requires that gains or losses on financial liabilities measured at fair value are recognised in profit or loss, except that the effects of changes in the liability's credit risk are recognised in other comprehensive income. The impact of the new standard is still being assessed by the Company.

### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

- 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
  - (r) New accounting standards and interpretations not yet mandatory or early adopted (continued)
    - AASB 2015-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards Extending Related Party Disclosures to Not-for-Profit Public Sector Entities (effective 1 January 2017)

The objective of this standard is to extend the scope of AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures to include not-for-profit public sector entities.

The objective of AASB 124 *Related Party Disclosures* is to ensure that an entity's financial statements contain the disclosures necessary to draw attention to the possibility that its financial position and profit and loss may have been affected by the existence of related parties and by transactions and outstanding balances, including commitments, with such parties.

There is no significant impact expected upon adoption of this standard.

 AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (effective 1 January 2019) and AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities (effective 1 January 2019)

AASB 15 is the new comprehensive standard for revenue and replaces AASB 118 *Revenue* and AASB 111 *Construction Contracts*. Under the new standard revenue is recognised when control of a good or service transfers to a customer, replacing the current principle that revenue is related to the transfer of risks and rewards. Revenue will only be recognised when control over the goods or services is transferred to the customer, either over time or at a point in time.

AASB 15 will apply to contracts that are exchange transactions. AASB 1004 *Contributions* will be superseded by AASB 1058 *Income of Not-for-Profit Entities* and provide guidance to assist not-for-profit entities to apply AASB 15. Proposed amendments will allow both reciprocal and non-reciprocal revenue from contracts with customers to be accounted for under AASB 15 where certain conditions are attached.

The new standard will have a significant impact on revenue from contracts that are exchange transactions and span multiple reporting periods. Additional disclosures will be required to enable users to understand the amount, timing and judgments related to revenue recognition and related cash flows.

The full impact of the new standard is not known and cannot be reliably estimated at 31 December 2016.

AASB 16 Leases, issued February 2016 (effective 1 January 2019)

Under AASB 16, lessees will not be required to classify leases as either operating leases or finance leases. All leases will be presented in the financial statements as either leased assets (right-of-use) or with property, plant and equipment by recognising the present value of future lease payments. Interaction with AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement will require that assets received at significantly less than fair value, such as peppercorn leases, are recognised at fair value. Corresponding income will be recognised in accordance with AASB 15 or AASB 1058 as outlined above.

Lessor accounting requirements will be substantially consistent with the predecessor standard, AASB 117 *Leases*.

The full impact of the new standard is not known and cannot be reliably estimated at 31 December 2016.

# **NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

- 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
  - (s) Adoption of new and revised accounting standards

The Company has adopted all standards which became effective for the first time for the financial year beginning 1 January 2016. The adoption of these standards has not caused any material adjustments to the reported financial position, performance or cash flow of the Company.

# **NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

### 2 CONSULTANCY AND CONTRACTS

2	CONSULTANCY AND CONTRACTS	2016	2015
		\$	\$
			•
	Industry research	9,625,475	13,861,289
	Royalties	360,079	759,441
	Consultancy	194,039	31,291
	Total consultancy and contracts	10,179,593	14,652,021
3	INVESTMENT REVENUE		
	Interest	84,330	348,890
	Total investment revenue	84,330	348,890
4	EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPENSES		
•	Salaries	3,335,230	5,092,072
	Superannuation	319,919	519,445
	Payroll tax	208,282	333,911
	Worker's compensation	-	46,918
	Long service leave	122,818	133,676
	Annual leave	315,075	417,810
	Total employee related expenses	4,301,324	6,543,832
5	DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION		
	Depreciation		
	Plant and equipment	118,464	123,523
	Amortisation		
	Intangibles	15,807	140,301
	Total depreciation and amortisation	134,271	263,824
6	IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS		
	Trade receivables	(185,647)	482,249
	Intangibles	<u>-</u>	148,201
	Total impairment of assets	(185,647)	630,450

8

# THE UNIVERSITY OF NEWCASTLE RESEARCH ASSOCIATES (TUNRA)

# **NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

### 7 OTHER EXPENSES

	2016	2015
	\$	\$
Advertising, marketing and promotions	24,685	75,026
General consumables	592,508	588,793
Insurances	90,408	105,595
Minor equipment	741,649	762,671
Operating lease rental	930	2,005
Professional services	2,958,812	5,085,775
Scholarships, grants and prizes	34,281	55,685
Telecommunications	37,993	54,030
Travel, staff development and entertainment	357,876	956,177
Other expenses	812,864	139,084
Total other expenses	5,652,006	7,824,841
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS		
Cash at bank and on hand	3,906,244	562,468
Short-term deposits at call	80,000	2,950,000
Total cash and cash equivalents	3,986,244	3,512,468

### (a) Reconciliation to cash at the end of the year

The above figures are reconciled to cash at the end of the year as shown in the statement of cash flows as follows:

Balances as above	3,986,244	3,512,468
Balance per statement of cash flows	3,986,244	3,512,468

### (b) Cash at bank and on hand

Cash on hand is non-interest bearing. Cash at bank earns floating interest rates between 0.15% and 0.50% (2015:0.50% and 1.00%).

### (c) Deposits at call

The deposits are at floating interest rates between 1.05% and 1.90% (2015: 1.90% and 2.40%).

### 9 RECEIVABLES

### Current

Trade receivables Less: Provision for impaired receivables	1,891,322 (77,481)	3,334,811 (462,964)
	1,813,841	2,871,847
Prepayments	51,290	53,951
Total current receivables	1,865,131	2,925,798

### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

### **RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)**

As at 31 December 2016 current receivables of \$459,650 (2015: \$696,023) were past due but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers for whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these receivables is as follows:

	2016	2015
	\$	\$
Less than 3 months	167,664	522,723
3 to 6 months	291,986	173,300
Total past due but not impaired current receivables	459,650	696,023

### (a) Impaired receivables

As at 31 December 2016 current receivables of the Company with a nominal value of \$77,481 (2015: \$462,964) were impaired. The amount of the provision was \$77,481 (2015: \$462,964). The individually impaired receivables mainly relate to those debtors that are in unexpectedly difficult economic situations.

The ageing of these receivables is as follows:		
Less than 3 months	-	121,000
Over 3 months	77,481	341,964
Total current impaired receivables	77,481	462,964
Movements in the provision for impaired receivables are as follows:		
At 1 January	462,964	30,715
Provision for impairment recognised during the year	69,138	452,324
Receivables written off during the year as uncollectible	(154,836)	-
Recovery of impaired receivables	(45,000)	(20,075)
Unused amount reversed	(254,785)	-
At 31 December	77,481	462,964

The creation and release of the provision for impaired receivables has been included in 'impairment of assets' in the income statement. Amounts charged to the provision account are generally written off when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash. The other amounts within receivables do not contain impaired assets and are not past due. Based on credit history, it is expected that these amounts will be received when due.

### 10 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Current Held to maturity investments		2,500,000
Total current other financial assets		2,500,000
Non-current Available-for-sale financial assets	1,683,485	974,440
Total non-current other financial assets	1,683,485	974,440
Total other financial assets	1,683,485	3,474,440

# **NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

### 10 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

### (a) Investments held on behalf of third parties

Included as part of available-for-sale financial assets is \$1,100,892 (2015: \$462,964) of investments held by the Company on behalf of third parties. A current liability of \$1,100,892 (2015: \$462,964) relating to these investments has been recognised as part of trade and other payables (refer to note 13).

### 11 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

I LANT AND EQUI MENT	Capital Works in Progress \$	Plant and equipment	Total \$
At 1 January 2015			
- Cost	-	759,674	759,674
Accumulated depreciation and impairment	-	(449,384)	(449,384)
Net book amount	-	310,290	310,290
Year ended 31 December 2015			
Opening net book amount	-	310,290	310,290
Additions	-	248,093	248,093
Disposals	-	(49,243)	(49,243)
Depreciation charge		(123,523)	(123,523)
Closing net book amount	-	385,617	385,617
At 31 December 2015 - Cost	<u>-</u>	925,420	925,420
Accumulated depreciation and impairment		(539,803)	(539,803)
Net book amount	-	385,617	385,617
Year ended 31 December 2016			
Opening net book amount	-	385,617	385,617
Additions	6,400	-	6,400
Transfers	2,184	(2,184)	<b>-</b>
Depreciation charge		(118,464)	(118,464)
Closing net book amount	8,584	264,969	273,553
At 31 December 2016			
- Cost	8,584	899,257	907,841
Accumulated depreciation and impairment		(634,288)	(634,288)
Net book amount	8,584	264,969	273,553

# **NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

### 12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

	INTANOIDEE AGGETO	Computer software	Intellectual property	Total
		\$	\$	\$
	At 1 January 2015			
	Cost	76,963	3,641,109	3,718,072
	Accumulated amortisation and impairment	(76,963)	(3,176,608)	(3,253,571)
	Net book amount	-	464,501	464,501
	Year ended 31 December 2015			
	Opening net book amount	-	464,501	464,501
	Additions	-	356,949	356,949
	Disposals	-	(445,856)	(445,856)
	Amortisation	-	(140,301)	(140,301)
	Impairment losses		(148,201)	(148,201)
	Closing net book amount	-	87,092	87,092
	At 31 December 2015			
	Cost	76,963	607,039	684,002
	Accumulated amortisation and impairment	(76,963)	(519,947)	(596,910)
	Net book amount	-	87,092	87,092
	Year ended 31 December 2016			
	Opening net book amount	-	87,092	87,092
	Additions	-	30,705	30,705
	Amortisation		(15,807)	(15,807)
	Closing net book amount	-	101,990	101,990
	At 31 December 2016			
	Cost	76,963	637,744	714,707
	Accumulated amortisation and impairment	(76,963)	(535,754)	(612,717)
	Net book amount		101,990	101,990
13	TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES			
	MADE AND OTHER LATABLES		2016	2015
			\$	\$
	Current			
	Trade payables		1,188,046	1,747,054
	Related party payables		767,764	2,147,029
	Investments held in trust for third parties		1,100,892	619,353
	Other payables		32,947	3,243
	Total current trade and other payables		3,089,649	4,516,679
	Non-current	·		
	Related party payables		<u>-</u> _	500,000
	Total non-current trade and other payables		-	500,000

# **NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

### 14 PROVISIONS

T NOVIGIONO	2016 \$	2015 \$
Current provisions expected to be settled within 12 months Employee benefits		
Annual leave	297,154	361,844
Long service leave	44,199	94,364
	341,353	456,208
Current provisions expected to be settled after more than 12 months		
Employee benefits		
Annual leave	162,896	47,594
Long service leave	417,852	364,297
<u>-</u>	580,748	411,891
Total current provisions	922,101	868,099
Non-current provisions Employee benefits		
Long service leave	273,997	198,444
Total non-current provisions	273,997	198,444
Total provisions	1,196,098	1,066,543

### Provision for annual leave

This provision is for outstanding annual leave liabilities that employees have not yet taken. It is assumed the majority of leave will be taken in the next 12 months. The measurement and recognition criteria relating to employee benefits has been included in note 1 to this report.

### Provision for long service leave

This provision is for outstanding long service leave liabilities that employees have not yet taken. The calculation of the present value of future cash flows in respect of long service leave being taken has been based on historical data provided by the Company.

### 15 OTHER LIABILITIES

Income received in advance	1,699,398	3,200,825
Total current other liabilities	1,699,398	3,200,825

# NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEINI

# FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016 16 RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS

### (a) Reserves

	2016	2015
	\$	\$
Available-for-sale investments revaluation	549,710	322,205
Total reserves	549,710	322,205
Movements		
Available-for-sale investments revaluation		
Balance 1 January	322,205	139,425
Revaluation increment	227,505	182,780
Balance 31 December	549,710	322,205
Movements in retained earnings		
Retained earnings at 1 January	779,163	4,505,330
Net result for the period	596,385	(3,726,167)
Retained earnings at 31 December	1,375,548	779,163

THE UNIVERSITY OF NEWCASTLE RESEARCH ASSOCIATES (TUNRA)

### (b) Nature and purpose of reserves

Available-for-sale investment revaluation: changes in the fair value and exchange differences arising on translation of investments, such as equities, classified as available-for-sale financial assets, are recognised in other comprehensive income, as described in note 1 and accumulated in a separate reserve within equity. Amounts are reclassified to the income statement when the associated assets are sold or impaired.

The company is incorporated and domiciled in Australia as a company limited by guarantee. In accordance with the constitution of the company, members of the company undertake to contribute an amount limited to \$20 per member in the event of the winding up of the company and are not entitled to distributions of dividends or repayment of capital.

### 17 KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES

### (a) Names of responsible persons and executive officers

The following persons were members of the board of the Company during the financial year:

Professor Kevin Hall
Dr Alan Broadfoot
Paul Dunn
John James O'Brien (resigned 4 March 2016)
Glenn Thurston Turner (resigned 21 March 2016)

### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

### 17 KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

### (b) Other key management personnel

The following persons also had authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company during the financial year:

Malcolm John Coble (General Manager) (appointed 14 June 2016)

### (c) Remuneration of key management personnel

Board members receive remuneration for their services to the Company, details of amounts paid in the current and prior years are as follows:

	2016 Number	2015 Number
Remuneration of Board members		
Nil	5	3
\$1 to \$9,999		2
	5	5

Certain key management personnel receive remuneration for their services to the Company details of amounts paid in the current and prior year are as follows:

Remuneration of othe	r key manageme	nt personnel
----------------------	----------------	--------------

\$110,000 to \$119,999	1	-
\$140,000 to \$149,999	-	1
	1	1

### (d) Key management personnel compensation

	2016	2015
	\$	\$
Short-term employee benefits	107,024	137,286
Post-employment benefits	10,167	12,181
Total key management personnel compensation	117,191	149,467

### 18 REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS

During the year, the following fees were paid or are payable for services provided by the auditor of the Company and its related practices, and for non-related audit firms:

Audit of	the financial	statements
V · · · · I; r · Ott:	£ NIO\A/	

Audit Office of NSW	45,950	48,150
Total paid for audit	45,950	48,150

### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

### 18 REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS (CONTINUED)

	2016 \$	2015 \$
Other audit and assurance services Hardwickes		2,750
Total paid for other audit and assurance services		2,750

### 19 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company did not have any contingent assets, contingent liabilities or commitments at 31 December 2016 (31 December 2015:Nil).

### 20 EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER REPORTING DATE

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations of the Company, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the Company in future financial years.

### 21 RECONCILIATION OF NET RESULT AFTER INCOME TAX TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY/(USED IN) OPERATING **ACTIVITIES**

	2016	2015
	\$	\$
Net result for the period	596,385	(3,726,167)
Depreciation and amortisation	134,271	263,824
Net (gain) / loss on disposal of plant and equipment	-	(1,666)
Impairment of intangible assets	-	148,201
In specie donation of intangible assets	-	445,855
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:		
(Increase) / decrease in trade and other receivables	1,443,489	1,066,495
(Increase) / decrease in other assets	(382,822)	200,265
Increase / (decrease) in trade and other payables	(1,139,410)	(2,427,047)
Increase / (decrease) in related party payables	(1,879,265)	248,026
Increase / (decrease) in other operating liabilities	(891,322)	(384,608)
Increase / (decrease) in provisions	129,555	(1,064,718)
Net cash provided by / (used in) operating activities	(1,989,119)	(5,231,540)

### 22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company. The Company uses different methods to measure different types of risk to which it is exposed. These methods include sensitivity analysis in the case of interest rate and other price risks, and ageing analysis for credit risk.

Risk management is carried out under guidance provided by the Board of Directors.

# 30

# THE UNIVERSITY OF NEWCASTLE RESEARCH ASSOCIATES (TUNRA)

### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

### 22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

### (a) Market risk

### (i) Foreign exchange risk

As the Company does not operate internationally the risk is minimal. The Company makes small, infrequent transactions in foreign currencies which do not pose a significant financial risk.

### (ii) Price risk

The Company's exposure to equity securities price risk arises from investments held by the Company and classified on the statement of financial position as available-for-sale financial assets. The majority of the Company's equity investments are publicly listed on the Australian Stock Exchange. The risk is managed by management obtaining regular updates from the companies in which the Company holds equity. The Company provides sensitivity analysis information for its available-for-sale investments, using historically based share prices collected over a 4 year period. The available-for-sale investments are not designated at fair value through profit or loss and therefore any change in unit price impacts directly on equity (rather than profit). A reasonably possible change is based on the percentage change in share price multiplied by the number of shares held at 31 December each year. The Company is not exposed to commodity price risk.

### (iii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Company's main interest rate risk arises from cash and cash equivalents and held to maturity investments. At 31 December 2016, if interest rates had changed by  $\pm$  1% from the year end rates with all other variables held constant, the result for the year would have changed by  $\pm$  \$39,862 (2015:  $\pm$ \$\$60,125).

### (iv) Summarised sensitivity analysis

The following tables summarise the sensitivity of the Company's financial assets and financial liabilities to interest rate risk and other price risk.

		Interest rate risk			Other price risk				
		-1	-1% +1%		-15%		+15%		
	Carrying amount \$	Result	Equity	Result	Equity	Result	Equity	Result	Equity
31 December 2016									
Financial assets Cash and cash equivalents Available-for-sale financial assets	3,986,244 582,593		(39,862)	39,862	39,862	-	- (87,389)	-	- 87,389
Total increase/(decrease)		(39,862)	(39,862)	39,862	39,862	-	(87,389)	-	87,389
31 December 2015									
Financial assets									
Cash and cash equivalents	3,512,468	(35,125)	(35,125)	35,125	35,125	-	-	-	-
Available-for-sale financial assets	511,476	-	-	-	-	-	(76,721)	-	76,721
Held-to-maturity financial assets	2,500,000	(25,000)	(25,000)	25,000	25,000	-	-	-	
Total increase/(decrease)		(60,125)	(60,125)	60,125	60,125	-	(76,721)	-	76,721

### **NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

### 22 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

### (b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as outstanding receivables and committed transactions. For banks and financial institutions, only independently rated parties with a minimum rating of 'BBB+' are accepted. The Company has policies in place to ensure that sales of products and services are made to customers with an appropriate credit history.

The carrying amount of financial assets (as contained in the table in note 23(a)) represents the Company's maximum exposure to credit risk. No collateral is held by the Company.

### (c) Liquidity risk

The Company maintains sufficient liquid assets to meet its short term obligations. Sufficient cash reserves are kept in the Company's 24 hour access account. These cash accounts are reviewed regularly by management to ensure all payments can be made when they fall due.

The following tables summarise the maturity of the Company's financial liabilities:

			\$				\$		
			Intere	st rate exp	osure	Maturity dates			
	Weighted average effective int. rate	Nominal amount	Fixed interest rate	Variable interest rate	Non- interest bearing	<1 year	1-5 years	>5 years	
31 December 2016									
Financial liabilities									
Payables	-	3,089,649	-	-	3,089,649	3,089,649	-		
		3,089,649		-	3,089,649	3,089,649			
31 December 2015									
Financial liabilities									
Payables	-	4,516,679	-	-	4,516,679	4,516,679	-		
		4,516,679		-	4,516,679	4,516,679			

### 23 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

### (a) Fair value measurements

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities must be estimated for recognition and measurement or for disclosure purposes.

Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables, their carrying value approximates their fair value and based on credit history it is expected that the receivables that are neither past due nor impaired will be received when due.

The carrying amounts and aggregate fair values of financial assets and liabilities at balance date are:

# **NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

### 23 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (CONTINUED)

### (a) Fair value measurements (continued)

Tall value measurements (contin		Carrying amount		Fair value		
		2016	2015	2016	2015	
	Note _	\$	\$	\$	\$	
Financial assets						
Cash and cash equivalents	8	3,986,244	3,512,468	3,986,244	3,512,468	
Receivables	9	1,813,841	2,925,798	1,813,841	2,925,798	
Other financial assets	10 _	1,683,485	3,474,440	1,683,485	3,474,440	
Total financial assets	=	7,483,570	9,912,706	7,483,570	9,912,706	
Financial liabilities Payables	13	3,089,649	4,516,679	3,089,649	4,516,679	
•						
Total financial liabilities	_	3,089,649	4,516,679	3,089,649	4,516,679	

The Company measures and recognises available-for-sale financial assets at fair value on a recurring basis.

### (b) Fair value hierarchy

The Company categorises assets and liabilities measured at fair value into a hierarchy based on the level of inputs used in measurement.

Level 1 quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data

(unobservable inputs).

### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

### 23 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (CONTINUED)

### (b) Fair value hierarchy (continued)

### (i) Recognised fair value measurements

Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of financial position are categorised into the following levels at 31 December 2016.

### Fair value measurements at 31 December 2016

		2016	Level 1	Level 2	Level 3
	Note	\$	\$	\$	\$
Recurring fair value measurements					
<b>Financial assets</b> Available-for-sale financial assets	10				
Equity securities		1,683,485	1,679,388	-	4,097
Total financial assets		1,683,485	1,679,388	-	4,097

### Fair value measurements at 31 December 2015

	Note	2015 \$	Level 1 \$	Level 2 \$	Level 3 \$
Recurring fair value measurements					
Financial assets Available-for-sale financial assets	10				
Equity securities		974,440	971,435		3,005
Total financial assets		974,440	971,435		3,005

There were no transfers between level 1 and 2 for recurring fair value measurements during the year.

### (ii) Disclosed fair values

The Company has a number of assets and liabilities which are not measured at fair value, but for which the fair values are disclosed in the notes.

The fair value of assets or liabilities traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and trading and available-for-sale securities) is based on quoted market prices for identical assets or liabilities at the end of the reporting period (level 1). This is the most representative of fair value in the circumstances.

The fair values of held-to-maturity investments disclosed in note 10 were determined by reference to published price quotations in an active market (level 1).

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables is a reasonable approximation of their fair values due to the short-term nature of trade receivables.

# **NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

### 24 DONATIONS

On 31 October 2015 the Company transferred its business development activities, including its unlicensed intellectual property assets, by way of an in specie donation of \$262,237 to the University of Newcastle. A cash donation of \$3,347,124 was also made during the year to the University of Newcastle.

	2016	2015
	\$	\$
Non cash assets transferred to the University of Newcastle		
Intangible assets		445,855
Total non cash assets transferred to the University of Newcastle		445,855
Non cash liabilities transferred to the University of Newcastle		
Employee provisions		(183,618)
Total non cash liabilities transferred to the University of Newcastle		(183,618)
Total non-cash donation	-	262,237
Total donation paid to the University of Newcastle	-	3,347,124
Externally paid donations		20,250
Total donations paid		3,629,611

The transfers of intellectual property (IP) and staff were undertaken as a net donation from the Company to the University of Newcastle.

### **DIRECTORS DECLARATION**

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

The Directors of the Company declare that:

- The financial statements and notes:
  - a. comply with Accounting Standards; and
  - comply with the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983 (NSW), and the Public Finance and Audit Regulation 2015; and
  - c. give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 31 December 2016 and financial performance for the year ended on that date of the Company.
- In the Directors' opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.
- 3. The financial statements and notes satisfy the requirements of the *Australian Charities and Not-for-profit Commission (ACNC) Act 2012* and are signed in accordance with subsection 60.15(2) of the Act.
- 4. We are not aware of any circumstances which would render any particulars in the financial statements to be misleading or inaccurate.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors pursuant to s.41C of the *Public Finance* and *Audit Act 1983 (NSW)*.

Professor Kevin Hall

Chair

Paul Dunn

Paul Dun

Director

Dated 23 March 2017

### **AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION**

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016



To the Directors
The University of Newcastle Research Associates Limited

### **Auditor's Independence Declaration**

As auditor for the audit of the financial statements of The University of Newcastle Research Associates Limited for the year ended 31 December 2016, I declare, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

Margaret Crawford Auditor-General of NSW

23 March 2017 SYDNEY

### INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016



### INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

The University of Newcastle Research Associates Limited

To Members of the New South Wales Parliament and Members of The University of Newcastle Research Associates Limited

### Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of The University of Newcastle Research Associates Limited (the Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, the income statement, the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the directors' declaration.

In my opinion the financial statements:

- are in accordance with section 41B of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983 (PF&A Act) and the Public Finance and Audit Regulation 2015, including
  - giving a true and fair view of the Company's financial position as at 31 December 2016 and its performance for the year ended on that date
  - complying with Australian Accounting Standards
- have been prepared in accordance with Division 60 of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 and Division 60 of the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Regulation 2013.

My opinion should be read in conjunction with the rest of this report.

### **Basis for Opinion**

I conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under the standards are described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements' section of my report.

I am independent of the Company in accordance with the requirements of the:

- Australian Auditing Standards
- Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 'Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants' (APES 110).

I have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with APES 110.

The PF&A Act further promotes independence by ensuring the Auditor-General and the Audit Office of New South Wales are not compromised in their roles by:

- providing that only Parliament, and not the executive government, can remove an Auditor-General
- mandating the Auditor-General as auditor of public sector agencies, but precluding the provision of non-audit services.

### INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

I confirm the independence declaration provided to the directors of the Company on 23 March 2017, would be in the same terms if provided to the directors as at the time of this Independent Auditor's Report.

### Directors' Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, the PF&A Act and the *Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012*, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors must assess the Company's ability to continue as a going concern unless they intend to liquidate the Company or cease operations. The assessment must disclose, as applicable, matters related to going concern and the appropriateness of using the going concern basis of accounting.

### Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to:

- obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error
- issue an Independent Auditor's Report including my opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee an audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect material misstatements. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions users take based on the financial statements.

A description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at the Auditing and Assurance Standards Board website at: <a href="http://www.auasb.gov.au/auditors">http://www.auasb.gov.au/auditors</a> files/ar3.pdf

The description forms part of my auditor's report.

My opinion does not provide assurance:

- that the Company carried out its activities effectively, efficiently and economically
- about the security and controls over the electronic publication of the audited financial statements on any website where they may be presented
- · about any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from the financial statements.

Margaret Crawford Auditor-General of NSW

28March 2017 SYDNEY

### THE UNIVERSITY OF NEWCASTLE

# UON SINGAPORE PTE LTD

### **FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

### **INCOME STATEMENT**

		2016	2015
	Note	\$	\$
Income from continuing operations			
Fees and charges	2	6,441,365	6,927,074
Investment revenue	3	158	168
Consultancy and contracts	4	52,734	211,860
Other revenue	_	83,517	184,536
Total income from continuing operations	_	6,577,774	7,323,638
Expenses from continuing operations			
Employee related expenses	5	2,678,559	2,898,229
Depreciation	6	-	7,757
Repairs and maintenance	7	11,204	13,168
Other expenses	8 _	4,276,630	3,354,036
Total expenses from continuing			
operations	_	6,966,393	6,273,190
Net result before income tax		(388,619)	1,050,448
Income tax expense	9 _	(30,731)	(99,145)
Net result after income tax for the period		(419,350)	951,303
Net result attributable to:			
members of UON Singapore Pte Ltd	=	(419,350)	951,303

### STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

		2016	2015
	Note	\$	\$
Net result after income tax for the period Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss		(419,350)	951,303
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations	17 _	(54,945)	409,013
Total other comprehensive income, net of tax	_	(54,945)	409,013
Total comprehensive income	_	(474,295)	1,360,316
Total comprehensive income attributable to members of			
UON Singapore Pte Ltd	_	(474,295)	1,360,316

### STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

	NI-4-	2016	2015
	Note	\$	\$
Assets			
Current assets			
Cash and cash equivalents	10	4,516,015	4,845,581
Receivables	11	85,162	79,233
Other financial assets	12		30,947
Total current assets	_	4,601,177	4,955,761
Total assets	_	4,601,177	4,955,761
Liabilities			
Current liabilities			
Trade and other payables	14	1,191,888	954,603
Current tax liabilities	16	-	99,116
Provisions	15	70,395	88,853
Total current liabilities	_	1,262,283	1,142,572
Total liabilities	_	1,262,283	1,142,572
Net assets	=	3,338,894	3,813,189
Equity			
Issued capital	25	86,036	86,036
Reserves	17	1,030,920	1,085,865
Retained earnings	17	2,221,938	2,641,288
	_	3,338,894	3,813,189
Total equity	_	3,338,894	3,813,189

### STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Balance at 1 January 2015	Note _	Issued capital \$	Retained earnings \$ 4,689,985	Foreign currency translation reserve \$ 676,852	Total \$ 5,452,873
Net result Gain/(loss) on foreign exchange	_	- -	951,303 -	409,013	951,303 409,013
<b>Total comprehensive income</b> Dividend paid	_	- -	951,303 (3,000,000)	409,013	1,360,316 (3,000,000)
Balance at 31 December 2015	17, 25	86,036	2,641,288	1,085,865	3,813,189
Balance at 1 January 2016		86,036	2,641,288	1,085,865	3,813,189
Net result Gain/(loss) on foreign exchange	_	- -	(419,350) <u>-</u>	- (54,945)	(419,350) (54,945)
<b>Total comprehensive income</b> Dividend paid	_	-	(419,350) -	(54,945)	(474,295) -
Balance at 31 December 2016	17, 25	86,036	2,221,938	1,030,920	3,338,894

## **UON SINGAPORE**STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

		2016	2015
	Note	\$	\$
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:			
Receipts from student fees and other customers		7,028,784	7,857,780
Payments to suppliers and employees (inclusive of GST)		(6,665,265)	(6,149,873)
Interest received		342	-
Income taxes paid		(130,240)	(242,850)
GST paid		(531,958)	(470,376)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities	24	(298,337)	994,681
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:			
Proceeds from redemption of held to maturity investment	_	29,930	_
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities	_	29,930	
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:			
Dividends paid	17 _		(3,000,000)
Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities	_	<u>-</u>	(3,000,000)
Net cash increase/(decreases) in cash and cash equivalents		(268,407)	(2,005,319)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year		4,845,581	6,496,417
Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents		(61,159)	354,483
Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year	10 _	4,516,015	4,845,581

### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

### 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

UON Singapore Pte Ltd ('the Company') is a company limited by shares incorporated in Singapore. It is a controlled entity of the University of Newcastle.

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements are set out below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The amounts presented are in Australian Dollars. The Company was established and has its domicile in Singapore.

The principal place of business of UON Singapore Pte Ltd is:

491B River Valley Road #04-02 Valley Point Singapore 248373

The principal activities of the Company are creating, developing and delivering educational programs in business, management and related fields on behalf of the University of Newcastle.

### (a) Basis of preparation

The annual financial statements represent the audited general purpose financial statements of UON Singapore Pte Ltd. They have been prepared on an accrual basis and comply with the Australian Accounting Standards.

Additionally the statements have been prepared in accordance with following statutory requirements:

- Public Finance and Audit Act 1983 (NSW)
- Public Finance and Audit Regulations 2015

UON Singapore Pte Ltd is a for profit entity and complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ('IASB') and these statements have been prepared on that basis.

#### Date of authorisation for issue

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the members of UON Singapore Pte Ltd on 23 March 2017.

### Historical cost convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value through profit or loss.

### Critical accounting estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Australian Accounting Standards requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying UON Singapore Pte Ltd's accounting policies. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.

### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

### 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

### (b) Foreign currency translation

### (i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment (Singaporean) in which the entity operates ('the functional currency').

The Company's financial statements are presented in Australian dollars, which is the University of Newcastle's functional and presentation currency.

#### (ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement. Qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges in a foreign operation shall be accounted for by recognising the portion of the gain or loss determined to be an effective hedge in other comprehensive income and the ineffective portion in profit or loss.

If gains or losses on non-monetary items are recognised in other comprehensive income, translation gains or losses are also recognised in other comprehensive income. Similarly, if gains or losses on non-monetary items are recognised in profit or loss, translation gains or losses are also recognised in profit or loss.

#### (c) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of returns, trade allowances rebates and amounts collected on behalf of third parties.

The Company recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Company and specific criteria have been met for each of the Company's activities as described below. In some cases this may not be probable until consideration is received or an uncertainty is removed. The Company bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement.

Revenue is recognised for the major business activities as follows:

### (i) Student fees and charges

Fees and charges are recognised as income in the year of receipt, except to the extent that fees and charges relate to courses to be held in future periods. Such income (or portion thereof) is treated as income in advance in liabilities. Conversely, fees and charges relating to debtors are recognised as revenue in the year to which the prescribed course relates.

### (ii) Investment revenue

Revenue on investments is recognised as income when earned.

### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

#### 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

#### (c) Revenue recognition (continued)

#### (iii) Consultancy and contracts

For contracts assessed as containing a reciprocal arrangement, revenue is recognised using the percentage of completion method, in accordance with AASB 118 *Revenue*. The stage of completion is measured by considering actual costs as a percentage of total forecast costs, or other suitable estimation technique.

Non-reciprocal consultancy and contract arrangements are accounted for in accordance with AASB 1004 *Contributions* and revenue is recognised at fair value when the Company obtains control of the right to receive the funds, it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the Company, and it can be reliably measured.

#### (iv) Other revenue

Other income represents miscellaneous income which is not derived from core operations and is recognised as income when earned.

#### (d) Income tax

The Company is subject to income tax under Singaporean Legislation.

The income tax expense or revenue for the period is the tax payable/receivable on the current period's taxable income based on the national income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements, and to unused tax losses.

Deferred income tax is provided if material to the Company, using the liability method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction (other than a business combination) that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses, only if it is probable that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of investments in controlled entities where the parent entity is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Current and deferred tax assets and liabilities relating to the same taxation authority are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and they are intended to be either settled on a net basis, or the asset is to be realised and the liability settled simultaneously. Current and deferred tax balances attributable to amounts recognised outside profit or loss are also recognised outside profit or loss.

### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

### 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

### (e) Impairment of assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

### (f) Cash and cash equivalents

For statement of cash flows presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the statement of financial position.

### (g) Trade receivables

Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. Trade receivables are due for settlement no more than 30 days from the date of recognition.

Collectability of trade receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis. Debts that are known to be uncollectible are written off. A provision for impairment of receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue) are considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. Cash flows relating to short-term receivables are not discounted if the effect of discounting is immaterial. The amount of the provision is recognised in the income statement.

### (h) Investments and other financial assets

#### Classification

The Company classifies its investments in the following categories: financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments, and available-for-sale financial assets. The classification depends on the purpose for which the investments were acquired. Management determines the classification of its investments at initial recognition and, in the case of assets classified as held-to-maturity, reevaluates this designation at each reporting date.

### (i) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this category if it is acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term. Derivatives are classified as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are classified as current assets.

### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

- 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
  - (h) Investments and other financial assets (continued)

### Classification (continued)

#### (ii) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for those with maturities greater than 12 months after the end of the reporting period which are classified as non-current assets. Loans and receivables are included in receivables in the statement of financial position.

#### (iii) Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the Company's management has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.

### (iv) Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets, comprising principally of marketable equity securities, are non-derivatives that are either designated in this category or not classified in any of the other categories. They are included in non-current assets unless management intends to dispose of the investment within 12 months of the end of the reporting period.

Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on trade date - the date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments and other financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transactions costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the income statement. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments and other financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold, the accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in other comprehensive income are included in the income statement as gains and losses from investment securities.

### Subsequent measurement

Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the 'financial assets at fair value through profit or loss' category are included in the income statement within other income or other expenses in the period in which they arise.

Changes in the fair value of monetary security denominated in a foreign currency and classified as available-for-sale are analysed between translation differences resulting from changes in amortised cost of the security and other changes in the carrying amount of the security (other than interest). The translation differences related to changes in the amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes in carrying amount other than interest are recognised in equity. Changes in the fair value of other monetary and non-monetary securities classified as available-for-sale are recognised in equity.

### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
  - (h) Investments and other financial assets (continued)

#### Fair value

The fair values of investments and other financial assets are based on quoted prices in an active market. If the market for a financial asset is not active (and for unlisted securities), the Company establishes fair value by using valuation techniques, that maximise the use of relevant data. These include reference to the estimated price in an orderly transaction that would take place between market participants at the measurement date. Other valuation techniques used are the cost approach and the income approach based on the characteristics of the asset and the assumptions made by market participants.

### Impairment

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired. In the case of equity securities classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of a security below its cost is considered in determining whether the security is impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative loss measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss - is removed from equity and recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses recognised in the income statement on equity instruments are not reversed through the income statement.

#### (i) Fair value measurement

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities must be measured for recognition and disclosure purposes.

The Company classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements.

The fair value of assets or liabilities traded in active markets (such as publicly traded derivatives, and trading and available-for-sale securities) is based on quoted market prices for identical assets or liabilities at the end of the reporting period (level 1). The quoted market price used for assets held by the Company is the most representative of fair value in the circumstances within the bid-ask spread.

The fair value of assets or liabilities that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques. The Company uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at each reporting period. Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments (level 2) are used for long-term debt instruments held. Other techniques that are not based on observable market data (level 3), such as estimated discounted cash flows, are used to determine fair value for the remaining assets and liabilities. The fair value of interest-rate swaps is calculated as the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The fair value of forward exchange contracts is determined using forward exchange market rates at the end of the reporting period. The level in the fair value hierarchy is determined on the basis of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement in its entirety.

Fair value measurement of non-financial assets is based on the highest and best use of the asset. The Company considers market participants use of, or purchase of the asset, to use it in a manner that would be highest and best use.

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are assumed to approximate their fair values due to their short-term nature. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the Company for similar financial instruments.

### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

### 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

### (j) Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost may also include gains or losses that were recognised in other comprehensive income on qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on plant and equipment is calculated using the straight line method to allocate its cost, net of its residual values, over its estimated useful lives, as follows:

2016 2015
Plant and equipment 1 - 3 years 1 - 3 years

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

### (k) Repairs and maintenance

Repairs and maintenance costs are recognised as expenses as incurred, except where they relate to the replacement of a component of an asset, in which case, the costs are capitalised and depreciated. Other routine operating maintenance, repair and minor renewal costs are also recognised as expenses, as incurred.

### (I) Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of the financial year, which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days following the end of the month they are recognised.

#### (m) Provisions

Provisions for legal claims and service warranties are recognised when: the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated.

Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the reporting date. The discount rate used to determine the present value reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

**SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)** 

#### (n) **Employee benefits**

#### (i) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for short-term employee benefits including wages and salaries and non-monetary benefits are measured at the amount expected to be paid when the liability is settled, if it is expected to be settled wholly before 12 months after the end of the reporting period, and is recognised in other payables. Liabilities for nonaccumulating sick leave are recognised when the leave is taken and measured at the rates payable.

### (ii) Other long-term obligations

The liability for other long-term benefits are those that are not expected to be settled wholly before 12 months after the end of the annual reporting period. Other long-term employee benefits include such things as annual leave, accumulating sick leave and long service leave liabilities.

It is measured at the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels, experience of employee departures and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at the reporting date on national government bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

Regardless of the expected timing of settlements, provisions made in respect of employee benefits are classified as a current liability, unless there is an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date, in which case it would be classified as a non-current liability.

#### (iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the normal retirement date, or when an employee accepts an offer of benefits in exchange for the termination of employment. The Company recognises the expense and liability for termination benefits either when it can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits or when it has recognised costs for restructuring within the scope of AASB 137 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets that involves the payment of termination benefits. The expense and liability are recognised when the Company is demonstrably committed to either terminating the employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal or providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy.

Termination benefits are measured on initial recognition and subsequent changes are measured and recognised in accordance with the nature of the employee benefit. Benefits expected to be settled wholly within 12 months are measured at the undiscounted amount expected to be paid. Benefits not expected to be settled before 12 months after the end of the reporting period are discounted to present value.

#### (o) Rounding of amounts

Amounts in the financial statements have been rounded off in accordance with ASIC Corporations (Rounding in Financial/Directors' Reports) Instrument 2016/191 issued by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission (ASIC), relating to the "rounding off" of amounts in the financial statements. Amounts have been rounded off to the nearest dollar.

#### Goods and services tax (GST) (p)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not recoverable from the taxation authority. In this case, it is recognised as part of the cost acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.

### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

- 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
  - (p) Goods and services tax (GST) (continued)

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included with other receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to the taxation authority, are presented as operating cash flows.

### (q) Comparative amounts

Where necessary, comparative information has been reclassified to enhance comparability in respect of changes in presentation adopted in the current year.

#### (r) New accounting standards and interpretations

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for 31 December 2016 reporting periods. UON Singapore Pte Ltd has elected not to early adopt any of these standards. The Company's assessment of the impact of these new standards and interpretations is set out below:

• AASB 9 (2014) Financial instruments (effective 1 January 2018)

AASB 9 amends the requirements for classification and measurement of financial assets. The available-for-sale and held-to-maturity categories of financial assets in AASB 139 *Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement* have been eliminated. Under AASB 9, there are three categories of financial assets:

- 1. Amortised cost
- 2. Fair value through profit or loss
- 3. Fair value through other comprehensive income.

The following requirements have generally been carried forward unchanged from AASB 139 into AASB 9:

- · Classification and measurement of financial liabilities; and
- Derecognition requirements for financial assets and liabilities.

However, AASB 9 requires that gains or losses on financial liabilities measured at fair value are recognised in profit or loss, except that the effects of changes in the liability's credit risk are recognised in other comprehensive income.

The Company does not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss. There will therefore be no impact on the financial statements when this standard is adopted.

 AASB 2015-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Extending Related Party Disclosures to Not-for-Profit Public Sector Entities (effective 1 January 2017)

The objective of this standard is to extend the scope of AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures to include not-for-profit public sector entities. The standard also makes related amendments to AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and AASB 1049 Whole of Government and General Government Sector Financial Reporting.

### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

- 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
  - (r) New accounting standards and interpretations (continued)

The objective of AASB 124 *Related Party Disclosures* is to ensure that an entity's financial statements contain the disclosures necessary to draw attention to the possibility that its financial position and profit and loss may have been affected by the existence of related parties and by transactions and outstanding balances, including commitments, with such parties.

There is no significant impact expected upon adoption of this standard.

AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (effective 1 January 2018)

AASB 15 is the new comprehensive standard for revenue and replaces AASB 118 *Revenue* and AASB 111 *Construction Contracts*. Under the new standard revenue is recognised when control of a good or service transfers to a customer, replacing the current principle that revenue is related to the transfer of risks and rewards. Revenue will only be recognised when control over the goods or services is transferred to the customer, either over time or at a point in time.

AASB 15 will apply to contracts that are exchange transactions. AASB 1004 *Contributions* will be superseded by AASB 1058 *Income of Not-for-Profit-Entities* and provide guidance to assist not-for-profit entities to apply AASB 15. Proposed amendments will allow both reciprocal and non-reciprocal revenue from contracts with customers to be accounted for under AASB 15 where certain conditions are attached.

The new standard will have a significant impact on revenue from contracts that are exchange transactions and span multiple reporting periods. Additional disclosures will be required to enable users to understand the amount, timing and judgments related to revenue recognition and related cash flows.

The full impact of the new standard is not known and cannot be reliably estimated at 31 December 2016.

• AASB 16 Leases, issued February 2016 (effective 1 January 2019)

Under AASB 16, lessees will not be required to classify leases as either operating leases or finance leases. All leases will be presented in the financial statements as either leased assets (right-of-use) or with property, plant and equipment by recognising the present value of future lease payments. Interaction with AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement will require that assets received at significantly less than fair value, such as peppercorn leases, are recognised at fair value. Corresponding income will be recognised in accordance with AASB 15 or AASB 1058 as outlined above.

Lessor accounting requirements will be substantially consistent with the predecessor standard, AASB 117 *Leases*.

The new standard will significantly increase leased assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial position. Additional disclosures will be required to enable users to understand the amount and timing related to the recognition of leases, impact on the profit and loss and related cash flows.

The full impact of the new standard is not known and cannot be reliably estimated at 31 December 2016.

### (s) Adoption of new and revised accounting standards

The Company has adopted all standards which became effective for the first time for the financial year beginning 1 January 2016. The adoption of these standards has not caused any material adjustments to the reported financial position, performance or cash flow of the Company.

### **NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

FEES AND CHARGES

2	FEES AND CHARGES	2016	2015
		\$	\$
	Course fees and charges	•	•
	Fee-paying offshore overseas students	6,435,262	6,920,475
	Course and conference fees	6,103	6,599
	Total course fees and charges	6,441,365	6,927,074
3	INVESTMENT REVENUE		
	Interest	158	168
	Total investment revenue	158	168
4	CONSULTANCY AND CONTRACTS		
	Consultancies	-	2,299
	Other contract revenue	52,734	209,561
	Total consultancy and contracts	52,734	211,860
5	EMPLOYEE RELATED EXPENSES		
	Academic		
	Salaries	1,791,605	1,959,773
	Contribution to funded superannuation	85,627	72,197
	Annual leave	130,110	100,150
	Total academic	2,007,342	2,132,120
	Professional		
	Salaries	560,114	606,256
	Contribution to funded superannuation	72,250	71,481
	Annual leave	38,853	88,372
	Total professional	671,217	766,109
	Total employee related expenses	2,678,559	2,898,229
6	DEPRECIATION		
	Depreciation		
	Plant and equipment	<u>-</u>	7,757
	Total depreciation	-	7,757
	•		

### **NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

### 7 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE

1	KEP	AIRS AND MAINTENANCE	2016	2015
			\$	\$
	Repa	airs and maintenance - general	10,931	11,552
	Build	ings	273	1,616
	Tota	I repairs and maintenance	11,204	13,168
8	ОТН	ER EXPENSES		
		rtising, marketing and promotions	58,994	38,493
	Gene	eral consumables	115,544	220,130
	Insur	rances	22,926	27,737
		r equipment	22,546	26,921
	-	rating lease rental	14,830	13,211
		essional services	882,883	777,221
		olarships, grants and prizes	148,160	67,360
	Rent		320,369	271,707
		communications	12,739	14,437
		el, staff development and entertainment	167,717	160,308
	Utiliti		8,580	10,568
		ice fees (to Parent entity)	2,418,392	1,516,334
	Othe	r expenses	82,950	209,609
	Tota	I other expenses	4,276,630	3,354,036
9	INCC	ME TAX		
	(a)	Income tax expense		
		Current income tax	-	99,145
		Adjustments for current tax of prior periods	30,731	<u>-</u>
		-	30,731	99,145
		Income tax expense is attributable:		
		Net result from continuing operations	30,731	99,145
		Aggregate income tax expense	30,731	99,145
	(b)	Numerical reconciliation of income tax expense to prima facie tax payable		
		Net result from continuing operations before income tax expense	(388,619)	1,050,448
		Tax at the Singaporean tax rate of 17% (2015: 17%)	(66,065)	178,576
		Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible / (taxable) in		<b>/==</b>
		calculating taxable income	66,065	(79,431)
		Adjustment for current tax of prior periods	30,731	-
		Income tax expense from continuing operations	30,731	99,145

Deferred tax assets / (liabilities) have not been recognised in the statement of financial position in respect of deductible temporary differences as they are not material to the financial statements.

### **NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

### 10 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

	2016	2015
	\$	\$
Cash at bank and on hand	4,516,015	4,845,581
Total cash and cash equivalents	4,516,015	4,845,581

### (a) Reconciliation to cash at the end of the year

The above figures are reconciled to cash at the end of the year as shown in the statement of cash flows as follows:

Balances as above	4,516,015	4,845,581
Balance per statement of cash flows	4,516,015	4,845,581

### (b) Cash at bank and on hand

Cash on hand is non-interest bearing. Cash at bank earns floating interest at a variable rate which was nil % at 31 December 2016 (2015:nil %).

### 11 RECEIVABLES

3 to 6 months

12

Total current receivables	85,162	79,233
Other receivables	59,774	59,136
Prepayments	10,758	20,097
Student fees	14,630	-
Current		

As at 31 December 2016 current receivables of \$14,630 (2015: \$nil) were past due but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers for whom there is no recent history of default. The ageing analysis of these receivables is as follows:

Total past due but not impaired current receivables	14,630	_
OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS		
Current		
Held to maturity investments		30,947
Total current other financial assets		30.947

14,630

### **NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

### 12 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

### (a) Held to maturity investments

A deposit assigned to the Comptroller of Goods and Services Tax (GST) of Singapore for the purposes of obtaining status under the Singaporean GST Scheme was fully redeemed on 29 November 2016 (2015: \$30,947).

### 13 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

	Plant and equipment \$	Total \$
At 1 January 2015		
At cost	68,319	68,319
Accumulated depreciation and impairment	(60,894)	(60,894)
Net book amount	7,425	7,425
Year ended 31 December 2015		
Balance at 1 January	7,425	7,425
Depreciation expense	(7,757)	(7,757)
Foreign exchange movements	332	332
Closing net book amount	-	-
At 31 December 2015		
- Cost	71,558	71,558
Accumulated depreciation	(71,558)	(71,558)
Net book amount	<del></del> _	
Year ended 31 December 2016		
Balance at 1 January	-	-
Additions	-	-
Depreciation expense		-
Closing net book amount	-	-
At 31 December 2016		
- Cost	70,568	70,568
Accumulated depreciation	(70,568)	(70,568)
Net book amount		

### **NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

### 14 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

	2016	2015
	\$	\$
Current		
Trade payables	354,121	322,463
Related party payables	815,184	484,137
Other payables	22,583	148,003
Total current trade and other payables	1,191,888	954,603

#### Foreign currency risk (a)

The carrying amounts of the Company's trade and other payables are denominated in the following currencies:

Australian Dollars	815,184	484,137
Singaporean Dollars	376,704	470,466
	1,191,888	954,603

For an analysis of the sensitivity of trade and other payables to foreign currency risk refer to note 26.

### 15 PROVISIONS

### Current provisions expected to be settled within 12 months

Employee benefits	
Annual leave	

Annual leave	70,395	88,853
Total current provisions	70,395	88,853

### Provision for annual leave

This provision is for outstanding annual leave liabilities that employees have not yet taken. It is assumed the majority of leave will be taken in the next 12 months. The measurement and recognition criteria relating to employee benefits has been included in note 1(n) to this report.

### **16 CURRENT TAX LIABILITIES**

Income tax payable	 99,116
Total current tax liabilities	 99,116

### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

#### 17 RESERVES AND RETAINED EARNINGS

#### (a) Reserves

(a)	Reserves		
		2016	2015
		\$	\$
	Foreign currency translation reserve	1,030,920	1,085,865
	Total reserves	1,030,920	1,085,865
(b)	Movements in reserves		
	Foreign currency translation reserve		
	Balance 1 January	1,085,865	676,852
	Currency translation differences arising during the year	(54,945)	409,013
	Balance 31 December	1,030,920	1,085,865
(c)	Movements in retained earnings		
(-)	Retained earnings at 1 January	2,641,288	4,689,985
	Net result for the period	(419,350)	951,303
	Dividend paid		(3,000,000)
	Retained earnings at 31 December	2,221,938	2,641,288

### (d) Nature and purpose of reserves

Foreign currency translation reserve – exchange differences arising on translation of the Singaporean dollar financial statements into Australian dollars are taken into foreign currency translation reserve.

### 18 KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES

### (a) Names of responsible persons and executive officers

The following persons were responsible persons and executive officers of UON Singapore Pte Ltd during the financial year:

### (i) Chair and Board of directors

Professor Amir Mahmood (Director, Chief Executive Officer)
Professor Andrew James Parfitt (Chair) (Resigned 25 November 2016)

Professor Mark Jones (Chair) (Appointed 25 November 2016)

Mr Michael Grenville Gray (Director)

Mr Tay Buan Huat Peter (Director)

Ms Sandra Davie D/O Periasamy (Director)

Mr Tao Yeoh Chi (Director)

### **NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

### 18 KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

### (b) Remuneration of board members and executive officers

2016 Number	2015 Number
2	1
4	4
1	1_
7	6
1	1
	Number 2 4

Remuneration bands for the Chief Executive Officer appear in both tables above as this position is a member of both the Board and an executive officer.

### (c) Key management personnel compensation

	2016	2015
	\$	\$
Short-term employee benefits	466,178	470,326
Total key management personnel compensation	466,178	470,326

### 19 REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS

During the year, the following fees were paid or are payable for services provided by the auditor of the Company and its related practices and for non-related audit firms.

### Audit the financial statements

7.144.1. 1.10 1.114.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1.1		
Audit Office of NSW	23,650	23,650
BDO Singapore	1,997	18,770
PwC Singapore	43,826	
Total paid for audit	69,473	42,420
Other services		
BDO Singapore	<u>-</u>	3,870
Total other services		3,870

Other services provided by BDO Singapore in 2015 included the preparation of the financial statements of UON Singapore Pte Ltd.

### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

### **20 CONTINGENCIES**

### **Contingent liabilities**

UON Singapore Pte Ltd has no contingent liabilities at 31 December 2016 (2015: \$nil).

#### **Contingent assets**

UON Singapore Pte Ltd has no contingent assets at 31 December 2016 (2015: \$nil).

### 21 COMMITMENTS

#### (a) Lease commitments

#### (i) Operating Leases

Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation to non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

	2016	2015
	\$	\$
Within one year	188,207	352,442
Between one year and five years	49,911	132,412
Total future minimum lease payments	238,118	484,854

### 22 RELATED PARTIES

### (a) Parent entity

The ultimate parent entity is The University of Newcastle by virtue of its full ownership of the Company's issued share capital.

### (b) Key management personnel

Disclosures relating to responsible persons and executive officers are set out in note 18.

### (c) Transactions with related parties

The following transactions occurred with related parties:

(i) The University of Newcastle

Service fees charged on services rendered	2,418,392	1,516,334
	2,418,392	1,516,334

### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

### 22 RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)

### (d) Outstanding balances

The following balances are outstanding at the reporting date in relation to transactions with related parties:

	2016	2015
	\$	\$
Current payables		
The University of Newcastle	815,184	484,137
Total current payables	815,184	484,137

### (e) Terms and conditions

All transactions with related parties were conducted under normal terms and conditions.

### 23 EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may significantly affect the operations of the Company, the results of those operations or the state of affairs of the Company in future financial years.

### 24 RECONCILIATION OF NET RESULT AFTER INCOME TAX TO NET CASH PROVIDED BY/(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net result for the period		(419,350)	951,303
Depreciation and amortisation	6	-	7,757
Net exchange differences		7,231	52,798
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:			
(Increase) / decrease in trade debtors		(14,630)	34,601
(Increase) / decrease in other receivables		8,701	(21,612)
Increase / (decrease) in trade creditors		66,051	138,047
Increase (decrease) in related party payables		331,046	3,085
Increase / (decrease) in other operating liabilities		(159,812)	(25,585)
Increase / (decrease) in provision for income taxes payable		(99,116)	(133,062)
Increase / (decrease) in other provisions	_	(18,458)	(12,651)
Net cash provided by / (used in) operating activities		(298,337)	994,681

### 25 ISSUED CAPITAL

### (a) Issued capital

<b>-</b>	`		
Fully paid ordinary shares (2 shares	86,	<b>036</b> 86,	,036

In accordance with the constitution of the company, Ordinary shares which are 100% owned by the University of Newcastle participate in dividends and the proceeds on winding up of the Company.

The company is incorporated and domiciled in Singapore.

### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

### 25 ISSUED CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

#### (b) Capital management

The key objectives of the Company when managing capital is to ensure the entity continues as a going concern and to maintain an optimal structure for sustainable growth.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders or issue new shares. The company does not have external borrowings.

#### (c) Dividends

The total dividend paid during the year ended 31 December 2016 was \$nil (2015: \$3,000,000).

#### **26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT**

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company.

Risk management is carried out under the direction of the Board of Directors.

### (a) Market risk

#### (i) Foreign exchange risk

The Company operates internationally and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to the Singapore and Australian dollar.

Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities that are denominated in a currency that is not the Company's functional currency. The risk is measured using sensitivity analysis and cash flow forecasting.

Management has set up a policy to manage their foreign exchange risk against their functional currency.

At 31 December 2016, had the Australian dollar weakened/strengthened by 10% against the Singapore dollar with all other variables held constant, post tax profit for the year would have changed by ±\$81,518 (2015: ±\$48,414), mainly as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of Singapore dollar denominated trade and related party payables.

### (ii) Price risk

The Company does not have any investments in equity securities and as such is not exposed to price risk.

### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

### 26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

### (a) Market risk (continued)

### (iii) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Company's main interest rate risk arises from cash and cash equivalents. At 31 December 2016, if interest rates had changed by  $\pm$  1% from the year end rates with all other variables held constant, the result for the year would have changed by  $\pm$ \$45,160 (2015:  $\pm$ \$48,456), mainly as a result of higher/lower interest income from cash and cash equivalents.

### (iv) Summarised sensitivity analysis

The following tables summarises the sensitivity of the Company's financial assets and financial liabilities to interest rate risk and foreign exchange risk.

	Interest rate risk				Foreign exchange risk				
		-1%		+1%		-10%		+10%	
	Carrying amount	Result	Equity	Result	Equity	Result	Equity	Result	Equity
	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$	\$
31 December 2016									
Financial assets Cash and cash equivalents - at bank	4,516,015	(45,160)	(45,160)	45,160	45,160	-	-	-	-
Financial liabilities Related party payables									
(denominated in \$AUD)	815,184	-	-	-	-	(81,518)	(81,518)	81,518	81,518
Total increase/(decrease)		(45,160)	(45,160)	45,160	45,160	(81,518)	(81,518)	81,518	81,518
31 December 2015									
Financial assets Cash at bank and on hand	4,845,581	(48,456)	(48,456)	48,456	48,456	-	-	-	-
Financial liabilities Related party payables									
(denominated in \$AUD)	484,137		-	-	-	(48,414)	(48,414)	48,414	48,414
Total increase/(decrease)		(48,456)	(48,456)	48,456	48,456	(48,414)	(48,414)	48,414	48,414

### (b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and deposits with banks and financial institutions, as well as outstanding receivables and committed transactions. For banks and financial institutions, only independently rated parties with a minimum rating of 'BBB+' are accepted. Trade receivables consist of student fees revenue and ongoing credit evaluation is performed on the financial condition of accounts receivable.

The carrying amount of financial assets (as contained in the table in note 27(a)) represents the Company's maximum exposure to credit risk. No collateral is held by the Company.

### NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

### 26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

### (c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses the Board aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping sufficient cash reserves on hand.

¢

¢

The following tables summarise the maturity of the Company's financial liabilities:

			Ф		্য Maturity dates			
			Interest rate exposure					
	Weighted average effective int. rate	Nominal amount	Fixed interest rate	Variable interest rate	Non- interest bearing	<1 year	1-5 years	>5 years
31 December 2016								
Financial liabilities Trade and other payables Amounts payable to	-	376,704	-	-	376,704	376,704	-	-
related parties	-	815,184	-		815,184	815,184	-	
		1,191,888			1,191,888	1,191,888		
31 December 2015								
Financial liabilities								
Trade and other payables	-	470,466	-	-	470,466	470,466	-	-
Amounts payable to related parties	-	484,137	-	-	484,137	484,137	-	
		954,603	-	-	954,603	954,603	-	

### 27 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

### (a) Fair value measurements

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities must be estimated for recognition and measurement or for disclosure purposes.

Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables, their carrying value approximates their fair value and based on credit history it is expected that the receivables that are neither past due nor impaired will be received when due.

### **NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS**

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

### 27 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (CONTINUED)

### (a) Fair value measurements (continued)

The carrying amounts and aggregate fair values of financial assets and liabilities at balance date are:

		Carrying A	Amount	Fair Value			
		2016	2015	2016	2015		
	Note	\$	\$	\$	\$		
Financial assets							
Cash and cash equivalents	10	4,516,015	4,845,581	4,516,015	4,845,581		
Receivables	11	74,404	59,136	74,404	59,136		
Other financial assets	12		30,947		30,947		
Total financial assets	=	4,590,419	4,935,664	4,590,419	4,935,664		
Financial Liabilities							
Trade and other payables	14 _	1,191,888	954,603	1,191,888	954,603		
Total financial liabilities	_	1,191,888	954,603	1,191,888	954,603		

### (b) Fair value hierarchy

### (i) Disclosed fair values

The Company has a number of assets and liabilities which are not measured at fair value, but for which the fair values are disclosed in the notes.

The fair values of held-to-maturity investments are disclosed in note 12 and were determined by reference to published price quotations in an active market (level 1).

## **UON SINGAPORE**DIRECTOR'S DECLARATION

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

The Directors of the Company declare that:

- The financial statements and notes:
  - a. comply with Australian Accounting Standards; and
  - b. comply with the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983 (NSW), and the Public Finance and Audit Regulation 2015; and
  - c. give a true and fair view of the financial position as at 31 December 2016 and financial performance for the year ended on that date of the Company.
- 2. In the Directors' opinion, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Company will be able to pay its debts as and when they become due and payable.
- 3. We are not aware of any circumstances which would render any particulars in the financial statements to be misleading or inaccurate.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors pursuant to s.41C of the *Public Finance* and *Audit Act, 1983 (NSW)*.

On behalf of the Directors

Professor Mark Jones

Director and Chairperson

Professor Amir Mahmood

Director

Dated 23 March 2017

### INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016



### INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

**UON Singapore Pte Ltd** 

To Members of the New South Wales Parliament and Members of UON Singapore Pte Ltd

### Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of UON Singapore Pte Ltd (the Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2016, the income statement, the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the directors' declaration.

In my opinion the financial statements:

- are in accordance with section 41B of the Public Finance and Audit Act 1983 (PF&A Act) and the Public Finance and Audit Regulation 2015, including
  - giving a true and fair view of the Company's financial position as at 31 December 2016 and its performance for the year ended on that date
  - complying with Australian Accounting Standards.

My opinion should be read in conjunction with the rest of this report.

### **Basis for Opinion**

I conducted my audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. My responsibilities under the standards are described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements' section of my report.

I am independent of the Company in accordance with the requirements of the:

- Australian Auditing Standards
- Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 'Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants' (APES 110).

I have also fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with APES 110.

The PF&A Act further promotes independence by ensuring the Auditor–General and the Audit Office of New South Wales are not compromised in their roles by:

- providing that only Parliament, and not the executive government, can remove an Auditor–General
- mandating the Auditor-General as auditor of public sector agencies, but precluding the provision of non-audit services.

I believe the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion.

### INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

### FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

### Directors' Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, the PF&A Act and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors must assess the Company's ability to continue as a going concern unless they intend to liquidate the Company or cease operations. The assessment must disclose, as applicable, matters related to going concern and the appropriateness of using the going concern basis of accounting.

### Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to:

- obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error
- issue an Independent Auditor's Report including my opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee an audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect material misstatements. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error. Misstatements are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions users take based on the financial statements.

A description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located at the Auditing and Assurance Standards Board website at: <a href="http://www.auasb.gov.au/auditors">http://www.auasb.gov.au/auditors</a> files/ar3.pdf

The description forms part of my auditor's report.

My opinion does not provide assurance:

- · that the Company carried out its activities effectively, efficiently and economically
- about the security and controls over the electronic publication of the audited financial statements on any website where they may be presented
- about any other information which may have been hyperlinked to/from the financial statements.

**David Daniels** 

Director, Financial Audit Services

28 March 2017 SYDNEY

## **UON SINGAPORE**INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT